NOMINATION: 4704 LEIPER STREET, FRANKFORD, PHILADELPHIA PA.
THE GARSED/BROMLEY MANSION, TO THE
PHILADELPHIA REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
BY THE PHILADELPHIA HISTORICAL COMMISSION

1. ADDRESS OF HISTORIC RESOURCE: 4704 Leiper Street (Current Address)
Postal code: 19124 Maria D. Quinones-Sanchez, 7" Councilmatic District.
OPA/BRT Account: 78777001 PARCEL MAP: 90-N-22/Lot—99

2. NAME OF HISTORIC RESOURCE: Brownstone Mansion Leiper and Arrott Street Philadelphia Frankford.

Common Name: Garsed/Bromley Mansion — formerly The Y.W.C.A. of Frankford.
Common Name: THE NEW FRANKFORD COMMUNITY Y. or THE FRANKFORD Y.

3. TYPE OF HISTORIC RESOURCE
X Building [] Structure [ ] Site [] Object

4. PROPERTY INFORMATION
Condition: [Jexcellent X good [] fair (] poor [ ] ruins
Occupancy: [ ] occupied X vacant [] under construction ] unknown
Current use: Vacant, Vandalized & Endangered — Waiting & Hoping for New Ownership.

5. BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION — A plot plan and written description of the boundary — Attached

6. DESCRIPTION — A description of the historic resource — Attached

7. SIGNIFICANCE — Statement of Significance — Attached
Period of Significance (from year to year): from 1866 to Present.
Date(s) of construction and/or alteration: Between 1866—1867 | 1974 Non-contributing additions.*
Architect, engineer, and/or designer: Reported to be John Garsed
Builder, contractor, and/or artisan: Reported to be John Garsed
Original owner: John Garsed
Other significant persons: William Overington Richard Garsed, Rachel A. Bault, Eliza Davenport,

William Bault, Robert Pilling & The Young Woman's Christian Association of Frankford.

1 Plot Plan. Web. 13® April 2016. <http:



http://www.phila.gov/zoningarchive/GenerateImage.aspx?app=219&docID=475122&pageNum=4

CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATION:

The historic resource satisfies the following criteria for designation (check all that apply):

X (a) Has significant character, interest or value as part of the development, heritage or cultural characteristics
of the City, Commonwealth or Nation or is associated with the life of a person significant in the past; or,
(b) Is associated with an event of importance to the history of the City, Commonwealth or Nation; or,

(c) Reflects the environment in an era characterized by a distinctive architectural style; or,

(d) Embodies distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style or engineering specimen; or,

(e) Is the work of a designer, architect, landscape architect or designer, or engineer whose work has
significantly influenced the historical, architectural, economic, social, or cultural development of the City,
Commonwealth or Nation; or,

(f) Contains elements of design, detail, materials or craftsmanship which represent a significant innovation;
or,

(9) Is part of or related to a square, park or other distinctive area which should be preserved according to an
historic, cultural or architectural motif; or,

(h) Owing to its unique location or singular physical characteristic, represents an established and familiar
visual feature of the neighborhood, community or City; or,

(i) Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in pre-history or history; or

(i) Exemplifies the cultural, political, economic, social or historical heritage of the community.

O O o o Oxxd

8. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES — Bibliography — Attached

9. NOMINATOR: Joseph J. Menkevich, Independent Researcher. Email: Menkevich.Research@gmail.com
4740 Castor Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. 19124, Telephone: 215-289-0365

DATE: 16" March 2016.

Co-NOMINATOR: Debbie Klak, President Emeritus of the Historical Society of Frankford. 2dklak@gmail.com

Co-NOMINATOR: Diane Sadler, Curator of the Historical Society of Frankford.?

Nominators [_] are X Are not the property owner.
PHC Use ONLY
Date of Receipt: 16 March 2016 (draft); 13 April 2016 (final)
X Correct-Complete [ ] Incorrect-Incomplete Date: 27 April 2016

Date of Notice Issuance: 28 April 2016
Property Owner at Time of Notice
Name: New Frankford Community “
Address: 4704 Leiper Street

City: Philadelphia State: PA Postal Code: 19124

Date(s) Reviewed by the Committee on Historic Designation:

Date(s) Reviewed by the Historical Commission:

Date of Final Action:
[] Designated [ ] Rejected 3/16/07

2 Debbie Klak & Diane Sadler are co-nominators as individual citizens of the City of Philadelphia, residents of the State of Pennsylvania and
are not in any way representing any interest of the Historical Society of Frankford Inc., a Pennsylvania Non-Profit Corporation.
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5. BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION  —Nomination Begins On This Page—

All 20" Century additions are not part of the Nominated Historic Resource & are not included in this Nomination.

BRT/OPA Account Number: 778777001 Legend
PHILADELPHIA Stormwater Billing Class:  Non-Residential D Selected Parcel
Other P. I
WATER e oo Qs
Impervious Surfaces
Parcel Owner: NEW FRANKFORD COMMUNITY " L_J Roof
D Other Impervious

Impervious Area
Total: 33,125 Total: 28,821
Credit: 0 Credit: 0

Parcel Area (square feet)

Above: Accessed. 26 Oct. 2015. Web. <http://www.phila.gov/water/swmap/Parcel.aspx?parcel id=108132>.



http://www.phila.gov/water/swmap/Parcel.aspx?parcel_id=108132

5. BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground situate in the 23" Ward of the City of Philadelphia
described as follows, to wit;

BEGINNING at a point formed by the intersection of the Northwesterly side of Leiper Street (forty feet
wide) and the Northeasterly side of Arrott Street (sixty feet wide).

CONTAINING in front or breadth Northeastwardly along said Leiper Street one hundred twenty-five
feet and extending of that width in length or depth Northwestwardly between parallel lines at right angles
to the said Leiper Street two hundred sixty-five feet. The Southwesterly line passing along the said
Northeasterly side of Arrott Street.

BEING Addressed as 4704 Leiper Street.®

090N22-0099 - 4704 LEIPER ST

Parcel Info

Status Active

Address 4704 LEIPER ST

Unit [No Value]

Street Code 50080

Air Rights [No Value]

BaseReq 090N22-0099

Parcel 0099

RecMap 090N22

Condo No :

Perimeter 780 ft RIS RN :
Area 33,257 fi2 R e s " o

Above: Parcel Explorer — Accessed 26 Oct. 2015. Web. <http://www.phi|a.qov/app|icatiohs/parcel.htrﬁb.

BEING part of the same premises which Irene Bromiley Dorey also known as Irene Dorey, Executor and
Trustee under the Will of James Bromiley, deceased and Emma Emery Bromiley, widow by Deed dated
6/15/1941 and recorded 6/13/1941 in Philadelphia County in Deed Book DWH 1288 page 347 and
conveyed unto The Young Woman’s Christian Association of Philadelphia (A Pa. Corp.), its successors
and assigns, in fee.

AND being the same premises which The Young Woman’s Christian Association of Philadelphia by
Deed of Confirmation dated 3/5/1993 and recorded 4/29/1993 in Philadelphia County in Deed Book VCS
290 page 460 conveyed unto The Young Woman’s Christian Association of Philadelphia, in fee.

UNDER AND SUBJECT to restrictions of record.
WARD #: 23rd.

St. CODE/HOUSE NO.: 50080 — 04700

CITY REGISTRY: 90 N 22 — 99

3 As recited: 34 July 1996: The Y.W.C.A to The New Frankford Community Y. Recorded in Philadelphia Deed # D0055-471
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6. PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION 4704 Leiper Street Architectural Description Written by John C. Manton 2016

The Leiper Street mansion is of the French Second Empire architectural style, erected about 1866-67.

25 — —

Figure 1‘:7The Front or Main Fa{gade [Unless otherWise noted, all photos taken by Joseph J. Menkevich — 2015 / 2016] Bl

The main fagade, which faces predominantly East, is three stories in height and five bays in width. The fabric of all four
fagades of the mansion are of un-coursed, dressed brownstone with rusticated brownstone quoins. All sills and lintels of the
first and second level of bays are also of brownstone. There is a full porch that runs the entire width of the facade and rises
one story in height, the roof of which is supported by a series of alternating wooden posts; some double, others single that
rise from large pedestal-bases of about two-feet in height. Of particular note here, is their capitals. SEE: Figure 2.

The floor of the porch is of tongue and groove board planking painted grey. Flanking the main entrance with its paneled
double-doors are four French bays having two-over-two sash. These same bays are surmounted with arched lintels.

The five second-story bays are surmounted with brownstone trim relieving arches. Of these five bays, two have their original
two-over-two sashes, whilst the other three have been replaced with 20th century replacement bays of one-over-one sashes.
The central bay has been reduced in size to accommodate an air-conditioning unit.

A concave Mansard roof completes this facade with three symmetrically spaced pediment dormers, having two-over-two
sashes. These dormers exhibit ornate carpenter’s embellishments. This Mansard roof contains the original variegated grey
slate shingles. The eave of the roof contains a paneled frieze board with brackets supporting its uppermost part.




4704 Leiper Street Architectural Description Written by John C. Manton 2016
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Figure 2: Capital Details

Of particular note here, is the capitals, which strangely mingle details of Corinthian, lonic, and Roman Doric capitals of
classical architecture.




4704 Leiper Street Architectural Description Written by John C. Manton 2016
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Figure 3: The South Fagade — Photogrphr is acng prdominanty

Northward

The South Facgade is two bays wide and rises three stories in height. The fabric is of un-coursed, dressed brownstone with
rusticated quoins at the corners. A brownstone belt-course runs the full length of the facade just above the cellar bays.

On the first floor level is a projecting polygonal flat-roof bay containing three windows of two-over-two sashes. Owing to a
20™ century addition erected during the YWCA’s occupation of the mansion, the remainder of this first floor level cannot be
described.

The second floor level has two bays each having brownstone sills and lintels and surmounted with relieving arches. These
bays have been altered with size reduction and the inclusion of sections intended for window air-conditioning units. A
concave Mansard roof completes this fagade with two asymmetrically-placed pediment dormers, having two-over-two
sashes.

This Mansard roof contains the original variegated grey slate shingles. The eave of the roof contains a paneled frieze board
with brackets supporting its uppermost part.




4704 Leiper Street Architectural Description Written by John C. Manton 2016
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Figure 4: The North F(;ade — Photographer is facing predominantly Westward

The North Fagade is constructed in two sections. On the left is a three-story elevation and on the right is also a three-story
elevation of smaller height. The left side Northern fagade is of un-coursed and dressed brownstone. Rusticated brownstone
quoins complement the corners of the fagade.

The first floor level has a centrally-located projecting polygonal flat-roof bay, having three windows with two-over-two
sashes. All of these sashes contain original etched glass in a Victorian motif.

On the second floor level of this facade are three bays. Of these, two have been altered during the YWCA occupation. Only
the central window remains in its original shape. The left window has been reduced in size to accommodate the inclusion of
a small window air-conditioning unit, whilst the left window has been turned in to a door to service an iron fire escape.

A concave Mansard roof completes this facade with three symmetrically spaced pediment dormers, having two-over-two
sashes. These dormers exhibit ornate carpenter’s embellishments.

The dormer at the extreme left has been altered into a door to service an iron fire escape. This Mansard roof contains the
original variegated grey slate shingles. The eave of the roof contains a paneled freeze board with brackets supporting its
uppermost part.
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Figure 5: The North Fgade —ay - Photorapher is facingpredominantly Southwest

This polygonal bay is flanked by two bays having brownstone sills and lintels surmounted with arched lintels and two-over-
two sashes. There is a brownstone belt course uniting the lintels of the cellar bays.




4704 Leiper Street Architectural Description Written by John C. Manton 2016
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Figure 6: Rear of the North Fagade — Photographer is facing predominantly Southward

There is a rear extension constructed at the same time of the main part of the mansion that is five bays in width and two and
one half stories in height. The facade is of un-coursed dressed brownstone with a brownstone belt course running the length
of both front and rear sections of the mansion. On the first floor level, all windows have sills and lintels of brownstone trim.

Four of the five bays have two-over-two sashes. Peculiar to this facade is a centrally-located small window having a lancet
arch and altered by reduction of its size. All four window openings of the second floor have all been altered by 20" century
replacement windows, three by reduction in size to accommodate independent window air-conditioning units.

The third floor half story is surmounted with a concave Mansard roof and one centrally-located pediment dormer with two-
over-two sash. This dormer is flanked by two brownstone chimneys that rise to a height of about ten feet. However, the
chimney on the right has been reduced either by collapse or design.

This Mansard roof contains the original variegated grey slate shingles. The eve of the roof contains a paneled frieze board
with brackets supporting its uppermost part. SEE: Figure 7 (next page).
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Figure 7 Rear of the North Facade — Photographer is facing predominantly South-Eastward




4704 Leiper Street Architectural Description Written by John C. Manton 2016

Figure 8: The West or Rear Facade — Photographer is facing predominantly South-Eastward

This is the rear wall of the YWCA’s 1974 additions, making any accurate description of the Historic Resource nearly
impossible from this angle.

To see a partial view of this facade of Historic Resource see Aerial Photographs in Figure 10 & Figure 12, also see Plot Plan
on page 14.
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4704 Leiper Street Architectural Description Written by John C. Manton 2016
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Figure 9: Opposite side of the rear fagade, facing West-South-West — Photographer is facing East-North-East
This section of building is the enclosure for the swimming pool, which was added in 1974 by the YWCA.

For a partial view of this facade of the historic building, see Aerial Photographs in Figure 10 & Figure 12, also see Plot Plan
on next page.
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PLOT PLAN FOR THE FRANKFORD Y. W. C. A.
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http://www.phila.gov/zoningarchive/GenerateImage.aspx?app=219&docID=475122&pageNum=3

4704 Leiper Street Architectural Description Written by John C. Manton 2016

Bird’s-eye views give clear access to the historic resource as weII as the non-contributing additions.

Flgure 10: Aerial Photograph of 4704 Lelper Street Courtesy of Plctometry / EagleVlew Technologies, Inc.

N

Figure 11: Above Image is Courtesy of Free Library of Philadelphia

The Historic Resource is roughly aligned with the compass below, as all four corners are ina N. S. E. W. orientation.
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4704 Leiper Street Architectural Description Written by John C. Manton 2016

In this photo the rear corner of the Hlstorlc Resource & the non-contrlbutlng bundlngs are facmg predommantly Westward

Figure 12: Aerial Photograph of 4704 Leiper Street, Courtesy of Plctometry / EagleView Technologies, Inc.

In this photo, the front corner of the Historic Resource is facing predominantly Eastward

Flgu re 13: Aerial Photograph of 4704 Lelper Street, Courtesy of Plctometry / EagleView Technologies, Inc.




7. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE: Criteria C and D Written by Oscar Beisert, 2016

The Garsed/Bromley Mansion possesses significance under the Philadelphia Code § 14-1004 Designation, ° satisfying criteria
for designation C and D and should be listed on the Philadelphia Register of Historic Places. The Garsed-Bromley Mansion is
an important example of the Second Empire style of architecture in the Frankford section and in Philadelphia at-large. On a
whole the house reflects the environment in an era characterized by this distinctive architectural style.

(c) Reflects the environment in an era characterized by a distinctive architectural style
(d) Embodies distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style

One of the most influential architectural styles of the Victorian era, the Second Empire was described as follows by the staff
of the Philadelphia Historical Commission in February 2016: °

The Second Empire style was used in America from the 1860s through the 1880s. It was a reinterpretation
of the French architecture of the Second Empire of France 1852-70 under Napoleon I11, which was itself a
reinterpretation of French Renaissance architecture as developed by the architect Francois Mansard in the
17th century. Its chief features were the mansard roof, projecting central and end pavilions in a largely
symmetrical fagade and a classical vocabulary of columns, arched fenestration, rusticated watertables, and
horizontal beltcourses and cornices. ’

The Garsed-Bromley Mansion conforms closely to the aforementioned stylistic characteristics. The building features the
following: a mansard roof, arched windows, a largely symmetrical facade, and classical details. Philadelphia’s finest Second
Empire style building is its fully articulated City Hall, which is just one of many early, period examples.®

City Hall too features a mansard roof, arched windows, and classical details; however, it is a massive public building and out
of scale in comparison to the subject building. Built in a similar residential scale, the Union League of Philadelphia (1864—
65), designed by Architect John Fraser, is a Second Empire style building constructed of brick and brownstone.

Like the Union League, the Garsed-Bromley Mansion features a less complex, but fully articulated mansard roof with dormer
windows. Both buildings have a porch. The Union League features a more institutional entrance porch, while the Garsed-
Bromley Mansion’s spans the entire fagade. Unusual surviving features included the porch details and column type.

5 Phlladelphla Historic Preservation Ordinance, Chapter 14-14000, With Pertinent Excerpts of Zoning Code, Effective 22 August 2012.

i df/historic%20preservation%20code%208-22-2012.pdf>.

6 When Emperor Napoleon III patronized an architectural style, his architects looked towards an imperial period of French grandeur of the
seventeenth century, consciously avoiding the architectural designs representing the defeat of his uncle Napoleon I. This led to the Second
Empire style, popularized in the third quarter of the nineteenth century—1855-1885. One major feature included the continued use of the
Mansard roof, named for seventeenth century French architect Francois Mansart, the principal developer of the roof type. Its popularity was
revived in France during the reign of Napoleon III from 1852 to 1870. However, it wasn’t the mansard roof that was particularly modern
about the style, but the employment of classical details and features into the designs. Likely related to the classical allusions of Napoleon 111,
the Second Empire was rich in horizontal layering using classical orders, which in the case of larger buildings led to a division of the masses

into pavilions upon pavilions. Separate mansard roofs would be employed on each pavilion, or in smaller works, sections. All of this was
embellished classical feature—ornament and sculptural enrichment.

7 Baron, Randal and Laura DiPasquale. Nomination of Historic Buildings, Structure, Site, or Object, Philadelphia Register of Historic Places,
Philadelphia Historical Commission: Columbia Singing Society/Columbia Gesang Verein hall, or “Columbia Hall”. Philadelphia: Philadelphia
Historical Commission, February 2016, pg. 8.

8 Perhaps the first major building of stylistic period was the massive c. 1852-1857 additions to the Louvre in Paris. Architects Louis Visconti
and Hector-Martin Lefuel integrated the new portions with the original Renaissance and Baroque sections. The architects created a heavily
embellished expression that was not just a limited to a revival of French Baroque, but the newly established Second Empire. While the Louvre
represents the very highest articulation of the style, the influence had its affect on domestic architecture with particular international influence
in both England and the United States. Architectural exhibitions of the 1850s popularized the style in England and, eventually, in the United
States. The use of the Mansard roof was also fashionable during the Victorian period because it allowed for the space to be used as servants
quarters and storage space. The most prominent early buildings that employed the style in the United States included Architect Detlef Lienau’s
Hart M. Shiff House, c. 1850-1852, New York City; Architect James Renwick’s Charity Hospital, Blackwell’s Island, c. 1854-1857; the Main
Building of Vassar College, c. 1860, also in New York; and the Corcoran Gallery, begun in 1859, halted in 1861, and finished in 1870-1871.
However, the true popularization of the Second Empire began after the Civil War. An important example of the style is the extant Old
Executive Office Building, c. 1871-1889, Washington, D.C. Even more incredible and one of the most important buildings of the century is
Philadelphia’s City Hall, c. 1871-1901, designed by Architect John McArthur.
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7. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE - Continued: Criteria C and D Written by Oscar Beisert, 2016

Much like the Union League, among many other buildings of the period, the Garsed-Bromley Mansion does not conform
entirely to the Second Empire style. Characteristics of the Italianate style are also present. These features include an imposing
cornice with dentils, tall floor windows, angled bay windows, and the use of quoins in the stonework.

Garsed/Bromiley Mansion Union League
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Figure 14: Above left photo, courtesy of J Menkewch Above right photo, courtesy of Wikipedia

In Philadelphia, the Second Empire style would go on to prove particularly useful in the urban environment, showing itself
most commonly in row house construction. The third floor of many houses was articulated with the use of a mansard roof.
The style lived on well beyond its great period of influence, which had originated in early prototypes like the Garsed-
Bromley Mansion.

7. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE - Criteria A and J Written by Joseph J. Menkevich, 2016

The Garsed/Bromley Mansion possesses significance under the Philadelphia Code § 14-1004 Designation, satisfying criteria
for designation A and J and should be listed on the Philadelphia Register of Historic Places. The Garsed-Bromley Mansion is
associated with the lives of persons significant in the past. °

The Garsed/Bromley Mansion exemplifies housing of elite mill owners that lived within a working class neighborhood in
which a large portion of the area’s labor force was under their employment and living in much less elaborate housing.
Subsequent owners of this Mansion House were also the wealthy affluent operators of many textile manufactories & dye
houses in Frankford, Kensington & Aramingo.'® In the twentieth century the building served as a women’s organization. **

(a) Has significant character, interest or value as part of the development, heritage or cultural characteristics of the City,
Commonwealth or Nation or is associated with the life of a person significant in the past; or

(1) Exemplifies the cultural, political, economic, social or historical heritage of the community.

9 Historical records demonstrate that the Garsed-Bromley Mansion was associated with the life of John Garsed of the firm of Richard Garsed
& Brother. This firm controlled several major cotton manufactories in the Frankford section of Philadelphia that were in operation before,
during and after the American Civil War (also known as the War for Southern Independence). During the Civil War, with the protection of the
Union Naval Forces, John Garsed ran cotton through southern blockades. Richard Garsed was one of the early members of the Union League.
The Leiper Street Mansion was constructed some time between 1866-1867. It is possible (but unsubstantiated) that the idea for constructing a
Brown Stone Mansion on Leiper Street may have came from within the walls of the Union League Building itself, as Richard Garsed &
Brother mingled with architect & Union League designer John Fraser, who about that time had designed a building within the Frankford
Arsenal. (See: Fatley, James J., Making Arms in the Machine Age: Philadelphia's Frankford Arsenal, 1816-1870. p.80).

10The attached brief of title identifies most owners of the mansion as being mill owners & textile manufacturers until it became “The Y.”
1'The Frankford YWCA holds distinct cultural & social heritage because of it being a Woman’s Organization through out WWIIL.
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Timeline: Mills on the Frankford Creek near Powder-Mill Lane, In The Latter Ownership of Richard Garsed & Brother.

While traveling through America, Charles-Alexandre Lesueur stopped and painted this mill on the Frankford Creek. This
mill/property will eventually find its way into the possession of the Garsed Family.

27" July 1822 - Logan’s Mill ** — At Frankford

e
S . A i

Figure 15: Charles-Alexandre Lesueur 15x21,5 cm watercolour and pencil, Muséum d'Histoire Naturelle du Havre

Dr. James J. Farley, writing on the Village of Frankford, states this mill area dates from 1775 and was the site of Oswald

Eve’s Gunpowder-Mill that supplied George Washington’s Army and later became Captain Stephen Decatur’s Power-Mill *

12 Philadelphia Deed Book: GWR.1.306 Chatles F. Logan to Samuel Pilling & James Bolton
13 Image courtesy of Muséum d'Histoire Naturelle du Havre. Web. 12 March 2016. <http://www.museum-lehavre.fr/fr/objet/philadelphie>.

10 years in Philadelphia — rough translation: Lesueur passed close to ten years in Philadelphia, capital of Pennsylvania, attending
scholarly circles in which William Maclure introduced him. Lesueur was responsible for building a natural history collection that was
lacking in the Museum of Paris; he regularly sent boxes of specimens. In December 1816, Lesueur also became a corresponding member
of the Academy of Natural Sciences of Philadelphia. ... He accompanied Maclure, Thomas Say and his cousin James Carmalt, Gerard Troost
and Reuben Haines in a geological trip to the North and East of Philadelphia. ...

14 ibid. Fatley, James J., Making Arms in the Machine Age: Philadelphia's Frankford Arsenal, 1816-1870. University Park, Pa.: Pennsylvania State UP,
1994. 3-4. (Accessed: Menkevich Library).
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1830 — Samuel Comly’s Print Works"® — Draft — Road From Frankford Creek to Front Street
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Figure 16: Court of the Quarter Sessions, Road Petitions 55-1181 (P-896) Accessed Phila. City Archives 02 Feb. 2016

Pilling’s Print & Dye Works *°

Figure 17: Map of the Township of Oxford, Boroughs of Frankford & Bridesburg */

15 Philadelphia Deed Book: GWR.16.178 Jacob R. Smith & Brothers to Samuel Comly (1827)

16 Philadelphia Deed Book: AM.60.208 Samuel Comly & Joseph Ripka to Samuel Pilling & James Bolton (7®April 1835).
7M. Dripps, 1849 Map. Courtesy of the FLP. <http://libwww.freelibra

.org/Diglib/ecw.cfm?ItemID=MDRPAA00001>.
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COMLY VILLE near FRANKFORD
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COMLY VILLE near FRANKFORD . Philadeipa e

N b. OF THE LADY'S BOOK.
Publashad by Jo A Godtr\(‘"’llzl Cheaneed Slrecl Phdaa"tw

Flgu re 18: CALICO PRINT WORKS AT COMLYVILLE "

THESE works are situated five miles from Philadelphia, near Frankford and exhibit a striking example of the
rapid improvements which have been lately made in this country, in that important branch of manufactures,
which has advanced-England to her present high and exalted station among the nations of the world. The works
were, but a few years since, used for the manufacture of powder, and for grinding grain. About forty years ago,
the property was in the possession of Mr. Miller, and by him conveyed to our well remembered and much
respected naval hero Commodore Decatur, the elder, by whom the water power was applied to the
manufacturing of powder. Upon the death of this proprietor, the place descended to his son, Stephen Decatur,
whose valour is well known, and was so eminently displayed in our late contest with Great Britain...

The building on the eastern side of this view, is a power loom factory, propelled by steam, belonging to Mr. S.
Steel, who employs one hundred and fifty hands, with two hundred and sixty-four power looms, in weaving
bed-ticking, cords, &c., being the most extensive factory in the neighbourhood of Philadelphia. In the village
there are several mills, driven by water, for sawing mahogany, grinding logwood, oil, &c. There are, also, about
thirty more stone and wood buildings, neatly erected for the accommodation of the workmen. Bordering on the
north view is the dyeing establishment of Mr. Horrick, where the largest business in this line is carried on,
which furnishes employment for fifty hands. There is, also, adjoining the print works, and formerly part of the
prgperty, an extensive bleaching establishment, conducted by Bolton & Pilling, employing about thirty hands.

18 The Lady's Book. Philadelphia: L.A. Godey & Co, Nov. 1830. Image © 2016, courtesy of the Menkevich Family Library.

19 Menkevich Presentation. Web. 2010. <http://frankfordgazette.com/wp1/wp-content/uploads/2010/06/Comly-Ville.pdf>.
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SETTLEMENT OF THE LEIPER STREET COMMUNITY

[ Capt. Smphgnsm-saim-Ménm Thomas Leiper, Tobacconist

Leiper Street was named after Thomas Leiper,? a tobacconist®* who purchased land in Frankford.* Leiper had a prior
association with Captain Stephen Decatur, the elder (who owned & operated a Powder-Mill*® on the Frankford Creek),
therefore prior to his purchase, he may have already been familiar with the Frankford area and it’s many rock quarries.**
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Leiper Street was opened in 1831 by Order of the Court, [illustration above].” Several years after the death of Thomas
Leiper, the executors sold his holdings within in the Borough of Frankford to William Overington.?®

20 The Story of the 1785 Mansion of Thomas Leiper: Scottish Patriot of the American Revolution. Swarthmore, Pa: Historic Delaware County, Inc, 1973.

Web. 18 Feb. 2016. <http://www.delawarecountyhistory.com/netherprovidence/documents/Thosleiper.pdf>.
2 Thomas Lelper and family business records. Web. 18 Feb. 2016.

22 9th December 1818 Robert Smith to Thomas Leiper, tobacconist. (85 acres). Phlladelphla Deed Book MR vol. 21 page 528.

23 Scharf, ] T, and Thompson Westcott. History of Philadelphia, 1609-1884. Philadelphia: L. H. Everts & Co, 1884. 1001. Web. 18 Feb. 2016.
<https://archive.org/stream/cu31924098140704# page/n172/mode/lup>. “Thomas Leiper, Matthew Shaw, Stephen Decatur, Sr., and John Singer,
were appointed commissioners to sell the powder-magazine...” [Note: Rec. Deed Book EF.29.161].

24 Eight Stone Quarties Are Located Within Frankford. Web. 18 Feb. 2016. <http://www.mindat.org/loc-7211.html>.

% Court of the Quarter Sessions Packet 51-1830 (P-794) accessed 10™ Feb. 2016. Philadelphia City Archives.

26 Philadelphia Deed Book AM.35.16. George Leiper to William Overington, 1%t April 1833.
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1831 — Petition & Draft of Sellers Street — The Estate of Thomas Leiper
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Figure 19: Quarter Sessions, Road Petitions 54-1152 (P-866) Accessed City Archives 02 Feb. 2016
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[Undated] Plan of William Overington’s Land % — Circa 1877
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Figure 20: William Overington’s Plan, Courtesy of the Historical Society of Frankford — Accessed 9" January 2009

27 Rachael Bault purchased the Mansion House in 1877. For the methodology used for dating the above plan, see the following Deed Books:
Philadelphia Deed Book DHI.166.156 Thomas J. Hill to Rachael A. Bault (27% November 1877).

For the adjacent property, see Philadelphia Deed Books:

JAH.115.224 George M. Troutman to Dr. William F. Gurnsey (25" January 1871)
JT0.124.98 William Overington to George M. Troutman (13* November 1867)
JT0.25.361 Richard Garsed & John Garsed to George M. Troutman (6 February 1867)
JT0.25.425 William Overington to Richard Garsed & John Garsed (1t January 1867)
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Atlas, 23rd Ward, 1876, Plate C — Mistakenly Lists Richard Garsed as the Owner of the Leiper Mansion
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Figure 21: Access via Free Library. <https:/libwww.freelibrary.org/diglib/Searchltem.cfm?itemID=MGMHAI00007>.

Atlas, 23rd Ward, Plate 3, 1887 — Mill Owners: Pilling, Davenport, Bault, Greenwood, & Rowland

Figure 22: Access via Free Library. <https://libwww.freelibrary.org/diglib/Searchitem.cfm?item|D=MGMHAAQ00006>.
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THE GARSED BROTHERS & THEIR MILLS

Richard Garsed®® and John Garsed formed a partnership trading under the name of R. Garsed & Brother. Several mills are
identified as being associated with Richard & John Garsed, mainly the Wingohocking, Frogmoor and Tremont Mills.

The Wingohocking Mills %

e e s e

L //////////.

1876 — G.M. Hopklns Atlas of Phlladelphla 23" Ward Vol. 3, Plate B

Flgure 23 Access via Free lefary <https //IlwaW freelibrary. orq/dlqllb/ecw cfm’?ltemID MGMHAI00005>.

28 Sketch of Richard Garsed: Robson, Chatles. The Biographical Encyclopadia of Pennsylvania of the Nineteenth Century, vol. 1. Philadelphia: Galaxy

Pub. Co, 1874. 298-99. Web. 25 Jan. 2016. <https://archive.org/stream/biographicalencyOlrobs#page/n839/mode/2up>.
2 Wincohocking Mills, A. Kollner’s Lithogy, Library of Congress. Web. 25 Jan. 2016. <http://www.loc.gov/pictures/item/2011645290/>.
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EXTENSIVE FACTORY—15" April 1853.

Richard Garsed and Brother are erecting an extensive cotton factory on Frankford creek. It is to be 504 feet long,
by seventy-six inches wide - to be built of stone, with eight fire-proof walls, to have iron doors, and to be covered
with a sky light roof. When finished, it will contain 20,000 spindles and 200 looms, and give employment to 250
persons. The machinery is to be driven by an engine of 150-horse power.

THE WINGOHOCKING MILLS—1871. *
Richard Garsed, Esqg., of Frankford, Pennsylvania, manufactures, in every day of ten hours, thirty-three thousand
miles of cotton thread—aobtaining from seven tons of coal the necessary power. Supposing it possible for such
guality of thread to be made by hand, it would require the labor of seventy thousand women to accomplish this
work.
THE WINGOHOCKING MILLS—21* December 1881. *
COMMERCIAL STATISTICS.
Showing as near as can be obtained the average amount of capital invested, number of hands employed, and
average amount of annual products, &c., of the various manufacturing establishments on the line of the Fraukford
Creek, between the river Delaware and the Frankford Road or Avenue, in the twenty-third and twenty-fifth wards

of the city of Philadelphia, and State of Pennsylvania, and other information connected therewith.

STATEMENT of GARSED & CO., MANUFACTURERS OF COTTON YARNS,
WINGOHOCKING MILLS.
Capital employed in business and building and machinery: $400,000
Value of products of the mill: $350,000
Wages paid per year: $108,000
Coal consumed per year, tons: 2,878
Cotton consumed, pounds: 1,549,945
Hands employed: 331
Mill contains, spindles: 16,000
Number of boilers: 8
Number of engines: 6
We beg to say that nearly all the cotton that we use is brought here by rail or hauled by team from the city. All the
coal we use is brought by rail. Although our mill is located on Frankford Creek, we are unable to make use of the

same.

30 Delaware County Republican 15% April 1853 — Web. <http://www.accessible.com/>.

31 Elder, William. Questions of the Day: Economic and Social. Philadelphia: H.C. Baird, 1871. 56. Web. 14 March 2016.

<https:/ /archive.org/stream/questionsday0Oelderich#page/56/mode/lup>.

2 LETTER from THE SECRETARY OF WAR, transmitting A report from Capt. William Ludlow, Cotps of Engineers, upon an examination
of Frankford Creek, from its mouth in the Delaware River to Frankford Avenue. FEBRUARY 15, 1882. 5. — Web. 14 April 2006.
<http://www.phillyh20.org/backpages/FrankfordCreek1882.htm>.
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THE FROGMOOR MILLS

City Atlas of Philadelphia, 25th Ward, 1875, Plate P
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Figure 24: Acceés via Phila. Free Libréry <http://libwww.freelibrary.org/diglib/ecw.cfm?ltemID=MGMHAJ00018>.
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THE TREMONT MILLS

ISRAEL FOSTER,* Manufacturer, was born in Lancashire, England, December 27" 1808, and came with his father to the

United States in 1821, having received his education in his native country.
1857, Leased the Tremont Mills, in Frankford, he converted them into-woollen mills, and transferred his
operations to that point. Here he continued until 1863, when he disposed of his lease and machinery to R. Garsed
& Brother, with the design of retiring from the manufacturing business.* These mills occupied both sides of the
creek, and comprised not only the original Tremont Mills, but also the Bridge Mill, erected about 1845, by
Pilling® & Bolton.*® He purchased the entire property, March 31, 1865, and retaining possession of the same
exactly one year, sold one half his interest in the same, in March, 1866, to James Whitaker, and then leased the
mills on the west side of the creek, on April 1% 1866, to the Garsed Brothers. Having associated himself with
others, he resumed manufacturing in 1866, and the firm of Israel Foster & Co. continued until 1873, when he
assumed the management alone. The mills occupied by Garsed Brothers were entirely destroyed by fire, June 14",
1866, but in less than a week the debris was in course of removal, and a stately structure replaced the original
edifice. This property was sold to Richard Garsed, February 1% 1867, reserving certain water rights for Tremont
Mills.®” The latter were entirely remodeled and enlarged by their proprietor, in 1865, and the Bridge Mill was also
greatly increased in capacity, in 1871 and 1872, and other buildings in its vicinity erected, including storehouses,
dye-houses bleaching and woollen factories. There are also commodious offices and all necessary out buildings.
Machinery of the highest grade and best description fill the various mills, and the establishment is complete
within itself, taking the wool in a raw state, making all its own yarn, dyeing its own goods, and sending them out
ready for market. The amount-manufactured daily is 1000 pounds of yarns, 1000 yards of ingrain, imperial, extra,
super, damask, Venetian and Palatine carpets, and thirty-five pairs of blankets of various sizes, grades, and
standards. About 3000 pounds of wool are consumed each day, employing from 400 to 500 hands. Few men are
more thoroughly conversant with the early history, progress and practical details of the manufactures of

Pennsylvania than the proprietor of these mills.

3 Robson, Chatles. The Biographical Encyclopadia of Pennsylvania of the Nineteenth Century, vol. 2. Philadelphia: Galaxy Pub. 1874. 129-133. Web. 25®
Jan. 2016. <https://archive.org/stream/biographicalency02robs#page/n129/mode/2up>.

34 Philadelphia Deed Book: ACH.88.2, Isracl Foster to Richard Garsed & Brother, Memorandum of Agreement 24t Feb.1863.

3 Samuel Pilling & James Bolton, ownet/operators on Frankford Creek also in New York: Inn 1826, the Peter Schenck, James and Sammnel Pilling
formally purchased land from 1.ydig for a bleaching mill on the east side of the Bronx River just north of Boston Road. See: Horn, Julie Abell, M.A., RP.A. &
Sara Mascia, Ph.D., R.P.A. Phase LA Archaeological Documentary S tudy Reconstruction and Construction of a Bicycle Pedestrian Path Within A Portion of the
Bronx River Greenway - Bronx County, New York. September 2014. 11. Web. 1%t Jan. 2016. <http://s-

media.nyc.gov/agencies/lpc/arch reports/1602.pdf>.

36 Bio: James Bolton, was born at Harwood, near Bolton, Lancashire, England, and died in his home in Bronxdale in 1869. He was married in England to Mary
Pilling, and came to this country about 1820, engaging in the bleaching business at Frankfort, Pa., for a time. A little later he removed to Bronxdale, where he followed
the same business. In 1825 Mr. Bolton reorganized the business as a stock company, under " An Act to incorporate the Brons Bleaching and Manufacturing
Company, in the Town and County of Westchester, passed April 20, 1825." , Mr. Peter H. Schenck and Mr. Bolton's brother-in-law, Mr. Samuel Pilling, were
stockholders with hin for many years. See: Spooner, Walter Whipple. Westchester County, New York: Biographical. New York: New York History Co,
1900. 215. Web. 01 Jan. 2016. <https://archive.org/stream/cu31924028835234# page/214/mode/2up>.

37 Philadelphia Deed Book: JTO.20.152 Israel Foster & James Whitaker to Richard Garsed.
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Figure 26: Image Created in 2006 by Joseph J. Menkevich. Courtesy of Historical Society of Frankford Photo Collection
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Tremont & Frogmore Mills on Powder Mill Lane Circa 1901
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Figure 27: Image Created in 2016 by Joeph J. Menkevich. Courtesy of the Philadelphia City Archives Photo Collection
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Tremont & Frogmore Mills on Powder Mill Lane (Wingohocking Ave.)
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Figure 28: Created in 2006 by Joseph J. Menkevich. Note: Vacant lot became “The Twins at Powder Mill” Housing Development™ *>

Additional Notes on the Garseds & their Mills.

Richard Garsed and John Garsed had formed a partnership, trading under the name of Garsed & Brother. They had sons.
Variations to the partnership name are R. Garsed & Bro. also R. Garsed & Brother. On the11"™ March 1863, recorded in
Philadelphia Deed Book ACH.88.4 (Agreement) Robert Patterson to Richard Garsed and John Garsed, Trading under the
Name of Garsed & Brother. $48,000.00 - Mortgage upon the Mill Lands & Machinery Wingohocking Mill and the Frogmoor
Mills Payments of $2000 due 1% October 1863, additional payments of $2000 due the 1* day of January 1864, $2000 due the
1* day of January 1865, $2000 due the 1* day of January 1866, $2000 due the 1* day of January 1867, $2000 due the 1% day
of January 1868, $2000 due the 1* day of January 1869, and $2000 due the 1* day of January 1870. Associated family
operating mills in Frankford, Pa., were Joshua Garsed, who had a son also named Joshua Garsed. Joshua Sr. had a mill on the
Wissahickon Creek in Roxborough.*® Another firm was Richard B. Garsed, Henry T. Garsed and Alfred W. Garsed, **
trading as Garsed & Brothers. These brothers eventually became owners of the Frogmoor Mills. Greenwood & Bault owners
of the Globe Dye Works™ leased the Minnehaha Mills to two the three brothers trading as Garsed & Company.*

3819% April 2007. N.E. Times. <http://web.archive.org/web/20081122070254 /http://www.northeasttimes.com/2007/0419 /homes.html>.

3 25% June 2007 — 30t Sept. 2013. Frankford Gazette. <http://frankfordgazette.com/tag/twins-at-powder-mill/page/3/>.

40 Phila Deed Book AM.29.681 Pennsylvania Insurance Company to Joshua Garsed and John Raines (10 Aug. 1832) 83 acres & 21 petches.
# Phila. Deed Book LRB.149.115 Elizabeth Whitelock to Alfred W. Garsed & Harvey S. Garsed - 1866

4 Hexamer General Surveys, Volume 12, Plates 1065-1066: <http://libwww.freelibraty.org/diglib/ecw.cfmrltemID=MHGSAM00009>.
4 JOD.54.389 Richard Greenwood, William Bault & John J. Greenwood of Frankford Pa., Dyers Co-Partners trading as R. Greenwood &
Bault to Joshua Garsed and Richard B. Garsed, Partners trading as Garsed and Company. (1st Aug. 1882)
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JOHN GARSED - AND THE CIVIL WAR

While there is ample information about the mills of Richard Garsed & Brother, not much is known about his brother John

Garsed. Apparently John Garsed was a purveyor of raw materials (cotton) for the Philadelphia area during Civil War aka The
War for Southern Independence, fought between the Army of Confederate States of America vs. the Union Army of United

States of America (1861-1865), throwing him into The Great Cotton Swindle. *

e el 4

Great Cotton Swindle.

WasHiyoToN, October 11.

The New York Times =pecial says:

A grest colton case, or more properly agreat cot-
ton swindle, has just been unesrthed at Augusta, Ga.
It involves nearly 120,000 bales of cotton, of value
of about $2,000 000, and the names of several prom
inent mllxt.ury officers are mysterivusly mixed up in
the affair. Large amounts of money ure sad tobave
been used in proposing & compromise, and the sums
being variously stated st $40,000, and $101,000, and
even 250,000 dollars. The volume of facts concern-
ing the transaction is very great, but briefly are a:
follows: During the rebel occupation of Georgia.
three parties nsmed Thomas 3. Metenlfs, Wm. A
Besll, and Jeremianh Beull. became the joint owners
of 9,754 bales of cotton, variously stored at Eufaula.
Ala, Albany and Dawson, Ga. One of the parties.
Moualte owned 4,000 bales on his own secount,
which the rebel General Hill, at Augusta, Georgia
turned in the street in a damaged condition. Met-
calfe gave a person named Schley one-third of the
cotton to re-hale it and put in shipping order. This
cotton Metealfe sold in July lust through Schley, to
John Garsed, of Pmmdelphm Tee defendants in
this case Gureed snd Schley, elaim that Meteulf also

# Tennessee. Brownlow’s Knoxville Whig, 25® Oct. 1865. Web. <https://www.newspapers.com/image/76160863/>.
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On Monday, October 23, 1865, John Garsed responded to the Alleged Cotton Swindle.*”®
A Letter From Mr. John Garsed, of Philadelphia.

To the Editor of the Philadelphia Inquirer.*®
On my arrival in Philadelphia on Wednesday, Oct. 19" I noticed in the different papers an article headed "The Great
Cotton Swindle." The facts of this case | will briefly state herewith, and at the proper time will be ready to prove them.
On the 10" day of June 1865, | went South for the purpose of purchasing cotton, having the requisite authority from the
Treasury and War Departments. On the 28" of June | had three lots of cotton offered me at Augusta, Ga., as follows:-
No.1: 2,080 bhales at 25 cents per Ib., payable in greenbacks.
No.2: 600 bales at 18 cents per Ib., payable in gold.
No.3: 9,794 bales at 23 cents per Ib., payable in greenbacks.
This offer gave me the privilege of answering by telegraph on the 6" of July. The following is my dispatch of that day,
sent forward by the American Telegraph Company:-
To George Schley, Augusta, Ga.- | accept one, two and three lots. Gold will be sent by next vessel, by Adams' Express.
Send forward the cotton. I will return by steamer on Wednesday next.

JOHN GARSED.
Lots one and two were delivered according to the contract. Lot No.3 they refused to deliver, cotton having advanced in
the meantime. On the 26" of July they had resold 3,000 bales of lot No.3 to one party and 1,100 bales to another. Being
informed of the fact, I at once appealed to Major-Gen. Steadman, Military Commander of Georgia, for protection, no
civil courts being in existence in that State at the time named. Gen. Steadman referred me to Gen. Grosvenor, the Provost
Marshal of Augusta, who requested me to furnish him with all the papers having reference to the contract.
After four days' examination of the contract, and after all the parties interested had been heard, and some of the most
prominent business men of Augusta examined as to such contracts, the case was decided on the 2™ of August in my
favor. $200,000 as a bribe was offered by Metcalfe, one of the principals in the transaction and a large holder of cotton,
to Gen. Grosvenor, to decide the case against me. The owners of the cotton gave two notes of $100,000 each, drawn by
Metcalfe and indorsed by Beals, which, notes are now in proper hands, and will be produced at the proper time.
They also deposited $11,000 in gold in the hands of Gen. Grosvenor, to be held as a guaranty for the payment of the two
$100,000 notes, which money was given to the Mayor and Council of Augusta for the benefit of the poor of that city.
There were no civil courts established in Georgia until the 5 day of August 1865, and the Governor's proclamation was
not published until the 7" while my case was finally decided on the 2.
I paid the full market price for cotton at the time, and could have purchased from other parties in Augusta on the same
terms. | will now leave with businessmen these facts, to judge whether there was any swindle on my part in this plain
business operation.

JOHN GARSED.

4512t Oct. 1865, N.Y. Times: CURIOUS OPERATIONS IN COTTON. Web. <https://www.newspapets.com/image/20643470/>.
419 Oct. 1865. The New York Times. Web. 5% Jan. 2016. <http://www.nytimes.com/1865/11/19/news/the-alleged-cotton-swindle.html>.

33



https://www.newspapers.com/image/20643470/
http://www.nytimes.com/1865/11/19/news/the-alleged-cotton-swindle.html

The Great Cotton Swindle developed into a Bill for the relief of John Garsed.*’

“nim e Re 1S

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES.
DrcuvnEr 11, 1871,

Read twice, referred to the Committee on Clzims, and ordered to be printed.

Mr. KeLLey, on leave, introduced the following bill :

A BELL

For the relief of John Garsed.

1 Be it enacted by the Senale and House of Representa-

Lo

tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

3 That the Secretary of the Treasury be, and he is hereby,
4 oaothorized and directed to pay, out of any money in the
5 'Treasury not otherwise appropriated, to John Garsed, the sum

6 of ten thousand doliars, being the sum advanced by said John
7 Garsed, and used in preparing for market a lot of colton
8 known as the “ Fry" cotton, which said cotton was seized by
9 the Treasury agents of the Uniled States in Savannah, Geor-
10 gia, in the month of October, eighteen hundred and sixty-five,
11 and subsequently sold, and the proceeds thereof paid into the
12 Treasury of the United States.

The Great Cotton Swindle took several years to settle and ended in the United States Supreme Court:

Cotton in bales to a very large amount was collected under the orders of a Confederate officer and was piled in
certain fields adjacent to the City of Augusta, to be burned in case our army should approach that city. Certain
guantities of cotton belonging to the appellee Metcalf were collected for that purpose under those orders, but our

army did not enter Augusta, and the cotton was left where it was deposited by the Confederate military forces.*®

47 Library of Congtess., A Bill For the relief of John Garsed. Web. <http://memory.Joc.gov/11/11hb/042/01900/01905000.gif>.
48 Garsed v. Beall 92 U.S. 684 (1875). Web. <https://supreme.justia.com/cases/federal/us/92/684/case.html>.
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THE HIGH PRICE OF COTTON AT 500 LBS PER BALE EXPLAINED

In 1861, the newly formed Confederate States of America, attempting to force England into the Civil War as an ally
or as the instigator of a compromise that would acknowledge Southern independence, unanimously adopted King
Cotton diplomacy. The South cut off England’s supply of cotton, the essential fuel for the British textile
manufacturers. In the nineteenth century, cotton was comparable in power to oil in today’s global economy.

The price of cotton became a serious inducement to corruption during the war. Union armies, both soldiers and
officers, succumbed to the temptations of smuggling. General William Tecumseh Sherman, in 1862, summarized the
unbridled competition for cotton: “[T]hat ten cents would buy a pound of cotton; that four cents would take it to
Boston, where it would receive thirty cents in gold. The bait was tempting and it spread like fire.” President Abraham
Lincoln tolerated the corrupt, federally sponsored domestic trade which would keep cotton from going to England.
He was “thankful that so much good can be got out of pecuniary greed.”

—————
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Figure 29: The Above Image & ALL excerpted text appearing on this page is courtesy of Gene Dattel. 49

Much to the dismay of America, England did proclaim neutrality—an informal recognition of the Confederacy. It
would have been delighted to see America dismantled. England’s failure to intervene formally on behalf of the South
had little to do with the morality on the question of slavery... Despite the ineffective cotton embargo tactic, King
Cotton had a huge impact on the war and its aftermath. Like oil, cotton could be used to barter for armaments.

As the price of cotton moved from ten cents a pound to $1.90 a pound in 1864, blockade runners risked capture to
bring cotton to England in return for arms for the Confederacy. Expected profits of 300 to 500 percent were an
irresistible inducement. Blockade runners were built, repaired, and retrofitted in England and manned by British
crews. The amount of arms purchased for cotton was staggering. One ship, the CSS Fingal, transported “15,000
Enfield rifles, more than two million cartridges, 24,000 pounds of powder...seven tons of artillery shells...” into
Savannah, Georgia, on November 12, 1861.

4 Dattel, Gene. "Commodities - Cotton, the Oil of the Nineteenth Century - Important Lessons of History." The International Economy. 24.1
(2010): 60-63. Web. 12 March 2016. <http://www.international-economy.com/TTE W10 Dattel.pdf>.
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MONDAY, OCTOBER 10, 1864.

THE WAR,

A VICTOGRY BEFORE RICHMOND.
The Enemy Repulsed by Birney and Kaufs,

BUTLER PURSUES THEM TO THEIR IN-
NER ENTRENCHMENTS.

A REBEL LOSS OF ONE THOUSAND.

The Torchlight Procession *

Sixth Grand Division - The Twenty-Third Ward
The delegation from this ward was numerous and highly respectable, and was under the direction of Mr. John
Garsed, and was made up citizens of Frankford, Holmesburg, Bustleton, Fox Chase, and the numerous other
towns and villages that dot the surface of this extensive and prosperous ward. A star of fore, called the “Star of
Liberty,” preceded a cavalcade of perhaps two hundred horseman. A wagon bearing illuminated muslin globes,
colored in sections of red, white and blue, followed and then came quite a feature of the display, another wagon,
that must have been intended to represent some sylvan bower or some romantic grotto Arches sprung from the
sides and end, and intersected each other at every point and every angle; all were thickly covered with evergreen,
holly, and climbing clematis, lightly springing up the “rises” and falling in graceful festoons from the centre.
Little flags waved at every point, in the clear light of the torches distributed over the structure. The deft fingers
and fine taste of the ladies was clearly evidenced in this. Two or three little boys were in the midst of the bower,
partly hidden in its exuberance. The torches that illuminated the bower it was their business to keep alight. Then
came another feature-a miniature muslin representation of a monitor, with turret revolving, ports opened, and
guns peeping out menacingly. The turret was covered over with inscriptions of character in keeping with the
object of the turret and the hard knocks its original had received. “This is the way to peace,” was one; “Abraham
Lincoln and the Union,” another. The delegation from Fox Chase carried a banner trimmed with evergreen, but
the inscription was not legible, because of the darkness. The Union League Campaign Club was out in force, and
among those who were willingly and patiently travelled over the long, rough, cobble-stoned route, we recognized
some of the most respectable residents of the town. The ward, therefore, in a great part rural, made a display that
rivalled that of any of her city sisters. The numbers were a publication in advance of an overpowering Union vote

in the ward.

50 Published as The Press, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania ¢ 10-10-1864 * Page 2. Accessed Free Library of Philadelphia. Web. 16 Jan. 2016.
[Note. The Civil War was still raging as the newspapers contained several headlines on the battles, however on the same page, John Garsed &
Co., were having a Torchlight Procession].
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THE FORTUNES OF THE GARSED BROTHERS CAME TO AN END WITH THE DEATH OF RICHARD GARSED **

RICHARD GARSED'S FUNERAL

-

A Well-Known Hanulm:tm_r YWha
Will Be Buried To-morrow.

Richard (Garsed, the yeteran manu-
facturer, who dled at hkis home In
Frankford on Tusesday, after an iliness
of more than a year, wlll bo buried
to-morrow afternoocn.

Mr. Garsed was boro'in England, In
September, 1819, and when he wes ‘one
year old his father came to America,
and engaged in the manufacture of
cotton goods In Burks county. IHis
son followed in his footsteps. In"1842
Richard Garmed moved to Frankford,
and has reslded there ever since. In
addition to hls manufacturing inter-
ests, Mr. Garsed has been prominent-
iy ldentified with several street ratl-
way companies. He was one of the
founders of the Unlon Leagtue and
was one of 1te nmaat honored membera

Shortly after the death of Richard Garsed, the Wingohocking Mills were sold at Sheriff Sale.>

Sheriff s Sales

Taken In execution, and to be sold as the pmp-
erty of Richard Garsed and John Garsed,

They were purchased by William Bault and then leased to Joshua Garsed.>®

51 Article Type: Death Notice, Philadelphia Inquirer, published as The Philadelphia Inquirer (Philadelphia, Pennsylvania) ¢ 07-29-1897 ¢ Page 5.

52 The Times. Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Monday 11% Oct. 1897 - Page 11. Web. <https://www.newspapers.com/image/53371124/>.
53 Philadelphia Deed Book: WMG.273.13 William Bault to Joshua Garsed (6™ Jan. 1898).
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A Bristol Man Who is a Model ""Uncle Sam"* **

Many characters, odd in their way, go up and down the river in regular trips of the various steamboats, and soon
become pursers and deck-hands. Among those who still take daily or semi-weekly trips, using the boats in
preference to the steam cars is a gentleman known to the steamboat men as a “dead ringer for Uncle Sam.”

When he took his first trip in the John A. Warner, > Captain Gray stood upon the upper deck with his hand on the
bell. He saw the remarkable resemblance as the passenger crossed the gang-plank. After the boat had started down
the river Captain Gray stopped at the purser’s office with the announcement, “We’ve got Uncle Sam on board,

look out for him.”

After making his rounds to collect the tickets before arriving at this city the purser met the captain with the
remark, “It’s Uncle Sam, sure enough.” So Uncle Sam it is to all the steamboat men until the present time.

Uncle Sam by the way, is John Garsed, formerly a mill owner with his brother in Frankford. The Brother died and
the mill closed up. Now, although nearly 70 years of age, Mr. Garsed is once more a manufacturer. He is the
proprietor of a mill at Bristol, Pa., and in explanation thereof he remarked to Captain Gray, one day, “you see I'm

too young a man not to be working.”

54 Philadelphia Inquirer, published as The Philadelphia Inquirer (Philadelphia, Pennsylvania) ® 09-25-1898 ¢ Page 10

% Beverly National Cemetery Burlington NJ: “Local tradition tells many interesting stories of the hospital and its patients, who were brought

from Philadelphia via the Delaware River. An old river steamer, the "John A. Warner" was used for this purpose exclusively, except when it

was used to carty troops up and down the river. The "John A. Warner" docked at the town whatf and always gave advance notice of its arrival

with a blast of the whistle.” Web. 01 March 2016. Section 8, page 3. <http://focus.nps.gov/pdthost/docs/NRHP /Text/97001201.pdf>.
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In 1900, the death notice of Mary Garsed, reveals that her husband, John Garsed was the builder of the Brown Stone
Mansion at Leiper & Arrott Streets and confirms the demise of their ownership in the Wingohocking Mills.

Deoath of Mrs. Garsed.

The loog married life of Mr. and Mrs.
John Garsed, of Hulmeville, formerly of
Bristol wu ended Friday by the death of
Mrs. Garse Fifty-five years ago, Mrs.
Garsed, tben Miss Mary Benton, of Frank-
ford, was married to John Garsed, » rising
young maaufacturer, who, in pumeuhlp
with his brother, Bnohud Garsed, conducted
& sucoessful business.

Soon ufter their marriage John Garsed
built the big stone house at the ocorner of
Leiper and Arrolt streets, Framkford, and
lived there for many years. Later in life
haviag lost much of bis money, John Garsed
and his wife moved to Bristol, and resided
on Radoliffe street, Later thoy moved to
Hulmeville, where Mr. Garsed is engagod ln
the manufacture of rope.

Mrs, Garsed was eighty years old, and her
health had been failing for several ' months.
The severe heat aggravated heart trouble,
from which she suffered and she died Friday |
afternoon. Bhe left, beside her husband, »
daughter, Mra. Alice Rowland, a son, st-
rence Garsed, of Frankford ; "Mrs. Goorge
Wislar udding near Mldwsy, and Mues
Leua d-ned, who resides with her father.

THE DEATH OF JOHN GARSED (1822-1909)

John Garsed formerly a resident of Bristol was found dead in bed at his home in Humesville yesterday morning.
Mr. Garsed was over 80 years old and at one time was a prominent resident of Frankford. During the Civil War he
equipped a company of volunteers from his private purse. For a period of time Mr. Garsed was engaged in the
manufacture of rope at Midway.’

John Garsed served as a Captain in the Union Army.*® He is buried in Beechwood Cemetery, Bensalem Township.”

% The Bucks County Gazette Bristol, Pennsylvania, 26 July 1900 - Page 3. Web. <https://www.newspapers.com/image/37095263/>.

57 The Bucks County Gazette Bristol, Pennsylvania Friday, April 2, 1909 - Page 3. Web. <https://www.newspapers.com/image/37097372/>.
58 Pa. State Archives. Civil War Veterans' Card File, 1861-1866. Web. 14" March 2016.
<http://www.digitalarchives.state.pa.us/Archives/17/22/T.oadMedia/3197/0001/3193.gif>.

% Burial information is provided courtesy of Sally VanSant Sondesky of the Historical Society of Bensalem and Bucks County Genealogical

Society. <http://www.bucksgen.org/index.php/component/chronoforms/?chronoform=BCGSSearchDetail&token=225915>.
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SUMMARY The Y.W.C.A. of Frankford, 1920—1975. *

The YWCA of Philadelphia, Frankford Branch, is a membership organization, which served the lower Northeast
section of Philadelphia from 1920 to 1994. The organization was one of numerous branches that have comprised
the YWCA of Philadelphia since its beginnings in 1870.

In 1994, facing financial collapse, the Frankford Branch was kept open by a community task force until a new
agency called the New Frankford Community Y (NFCY) could open in its place. The NFCY was established in
December 1994. From the beginning, the YWCA was established to provide leadership training for women and
girls throughout the United States. Established on November 7, 1920, the Frankford Branch of the YWCA of
Philadelphia grew from a storeroom at 4330 Frankford Avenue to a brown stone mansion at 4704 Leiper Street.
Expanding membership made it necessary for the Frankford YWCA to relocate three times before purchasing a
temporary home at 4681-83 Griscom Street in July 1924.

Although the Depression kept the Branch at that location for sixteen years, a cafeteria there continued to be
successful, a residence housed eight young women, and club and educational activities were popular. In 1941, the

Frankford YWCA purchased its permanent home on Leiper Street.

From 1941 to 1960, the Frankford Branch continued to offer leadership programs for women, serve community
needs, and expand its facilities. Through 1945, its adult program centered on war services, participating in the

YWCA of Philadelphia's training of 5,000 hostesses for USO dances and entertainment in local hospitals.

A city wide building campaign in 1950 made the construction of an outdoor play court and additional space for
canteens possible. Club activity until the end of the 1950s was varied. Clubs for employed young women,
homemakers, and couples aimed at enriching lives and increasing community responsibility. Most of the Branch's
activities served area youth, with the Y-Teen clubs for girls and boys and summer camps for girls its core
programs. The Frankford YWCA also became a center for community life, offering its facilities to a variety of

organizations like the Girl Scouts and Settlement Music School.

By 1960, with a growing population in Northeast Philadelphia, the Branch developed an extension program. With
local interest in physical education growing, the Frankford YWCA began exploring the building of an indoor
swimming pool. In 1964, it opened in a central location in the Northeast with a new YWCA of Philadelphia
branch building at 2840 Holme Avenue. It was not until 1975 that the Frankford Branch built its own swimming
pool. Also, during the late 1960s, the Branch became more actively involved in dealing with racial problems in

the local community, publishing a paper in 1968 called the Northeast Liberator.

% Records. 1920-1975. The Y.W.C.A. of Philadelphia, Frankford Branch. (18 linear feet, 18 boxes) Special Collections Research Center of
Temple University Library. Finding Aid. Web. <https://library.temple.edu/scrc/young-women%E2%80%99s-christian>.
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Summary Continued:
The Y.W.C.A. of Frankford becomes the New Frankford Community Y — The 1993 Demise

Leaders Prepare Frankford Ywca For Independence - They'll Serve The Public. It's Either That Or Close.®?

It was Independence Day in Frankford yesterday, with speeches, cheers and a declaration by the YWCA branch
there that it would fight for freedom. "Since 1942, these doors have never closed. Never," branch director Marian
Wolfe said. Wolfe and the other five administrators at her Y have been working without salaries for nearly a
month, keeping programs going as the YWCA of Philadelphia, long financially troubled, founders. About three
and a half weeks ago, the Y's largest branch, at 2840 Holme Ave. in Pennypack Park, was closed. It's up for sale.
That leaves two working branches - Frankford and Southwest-Belmont. The North Central branch closed two
years ago. The North Central building, at 1517 W. Girard Ave., is also on the sale block. The Germantown
YWCA is not affiliated with the Philadelphia association. The demise of the YWCA's Northeast branch in
October fired up rumors that Frankford would be next. Supporters want to cut the Frankford branch from the main
office and turn it into an independent, nonprofit corporation. Backers say the breakaway organization might keep
YWCA affiliation, but that is not a primary concern. Yesterday, civic and religious leaders told a group of about
75 gathered at the Y - Arrott and Leiper Streets - that independence is possible. "It's going to be a struggle,"
Councilman Dan McElhatton told them. "Membership is what will have to do it. We must increase the
membership of the Frankford Y. ... We can't do it without your help and your getting the word out that the
Frankford Y is not going to close." Frankford needs more members to help generate income to run the operation,
which will have to assume the $240,000 mortgage on the building. McElhatton said supporters also are working
to identify other financing sources, including a possible city contract and help from United Way. ... But
McElhatton told the group in Frankford yesterday that "the corporate structure of the Philadelphia YWCA can't
survive. . . . The Philadelphia YWCA's financial problems . . . have caused the Y system to disintegrate." Ed
Becker, a federal judge and a lifelong Frankford resident, assured the gathering that officials in the head office
were ready to let go. "They have given me their word," said Becker, who sits on the Third U.S. Circuit Court of
Appeals. "They are finished. They are out of business, and they will let Frankford go. . . . We will get our
freedom, but we've got to earn our freedom." He explained: "We've got to vastly increase our membership."”
Becker is working to put together a founding board of directors, which would shape the new organization. One
guestion raised at the gathering was whether that board should be all women, as is the board governing the
Frankford YWCA. "My recommendation would be that it be a mixed board," McElhatton said, adding that the
effort to save the institution has not been single-sex. "Believe it or not, some men in this community have made a
meaningful contribution,” he said, drawing laughter. Wolfe, the branch director, said after the meeting, "I think it's
very important that there is a strong female presence on the board.” The Rev. Robin Hynicka, director of
Frankford Group Ministry, said the Y is the only organization in the community "with these two goals: a mission

to empower women and, along with that, to eliminate racism."”

1 Northeast Ywca Sets Reopening The Branch Closed When It Couldn't Make Payroll. A City Contract And Cash And Pledges Helped.

215t Sept. 1993. Web. <http://articles.philly.com/1993-09-21/news /25983804 1 bankruptcy-protection-ywca-officials-united-way>.

62 Leaders Prepare Frankford Ywca For Independence Taking The Y Private, They’ll Serve The Public. Or Close. 16 Nov. 1994. Web.
: illy.com/1994-11-16/news/25867775 1 ywca-branch-north-central-branch-largest-branch>.
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Summary Continued:
1994 — FRANKFORD Y SALUTED ®

I was very pleased to attend the press conference Dec. 10 announcing the formation of the new Frankford
Community Y. As one who has participated in the dizzying series of meetings, negotiations and conferences
about the Y branches, | can appreciate the sense of accomplishment, determination and hopefulness in the
comments of City Councilman Daniel McElhatton, state Rep. John Taylor, new board president Marie Delany and
the indomitable Marian Wolfe. The demand for the independence of the branches came from us - not from the
executive office - and is rooted in our commitment to utilize every existing resource we have or can find to benefit
directly the youth in the communities we serve. Frankford is a special community, particularly fortunate to have
the support of Judge Edward Becker and the other task force members in recognizing the importance of and in
working to preserve this venerable community resource. | salute the new Frankford Community Y and wish then
well in the challenging months ahead.
SHARON A. BEMBERY,
Director Southwest-Belmont Community Association, Philadelphia

ALL IS NOT WELL.*
2013 — Frankford Y Is Free of Debt and Free To Be Used Again

The Frankford Y at Leiper and Arrott went from community asset to community eye sore in the four plus years
since it closed in mid 2009. Now, a new board of directors believes it will turn it all around again, leasing the old
mid-19th century mansion part of the property for offices and repairing the newer section, built in the 1970s, so
exercise rooms and the basketball court can be used again. Since the New Frankford Community Y closed
because it couldn’t pay its bills, money had remained the barrier to doing anything with the property. It had been
burdened with a $175,000 mortgage, delinquent payments, mounting interest, penalties and other debts. Thanks to
Beneficial Bank and its holding company, said the non-profit board’s president, Frank Bennett, the financial onus
has been lifted. The financial institution declared the debts, which Bennett said added up to about $400,000,
“satisfied and discharged,” on Oct. 25. Bennett said no mortgage payments had been made since 2007. He said he
couldn’t stress enough how helpful Beneficial had been and also thanked state Rep. John Taylor, who Bennett
said also aided the board. “Beneficial did the community a favor by not foreclosing,” Bennett said. Many
community members had feared the spacious property would be used as a drug treatment center or for housing for
recovering addicts, said board member Pete Specos. That’s a hot button issue in Frankford because there are many
such facilities — legal and illegal — in the neighborhood. During a Sunday morning announcement at the Y
property, board members Bennett, Specos, Kristy Schneider, Joe Krause and Jose Figueroa said they hope to soon

open up the newer building’s exercise room and basketball court, and are looking for donations to make it happen.

63 Letter To The Editor. 2274 Dec. 1994. Web. <http://articles.philly.com/1994-12-22 /news/25856249 1 race-multiracial-respect>.

64 Sheriff’s Sale Notice. 26t Sept. 2011. Pg.2, Col.1. 276-894. 4704 Leiper St. 23rd Wd 33125 sq. ft. brt #. 882938230 Improvements. Web. 16t
March 2016. <htt www.alm.law.com/image/pa/ads/Sheriff 2011 09 26.pdf>.
% Loftus, John. Frankford Y is free of debt. Northeast Times. 6® Nov. 2013. Web. 16® March 2016.
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Summary Continued:
2014 — Frankford Y Forging an Unlikely Path Back From The Brink ®

The stately brownstone mansion at Leiper and Arrott streets is cold and dark, the front yard-turned-parking-lot is
snowy, and the intersection is quiet though it is nearly rush hour at the nearby Margaret-Orthodox El stop. The
Northwood Frankford Community Y is, like me on that waning winter afternoon, waiting. The Y has been vacant
since 2009 and its recent history is a tangle of failures, endurance, and stubborn hope. Once a community
landmark, the Y has become a source of consternation among neighbors, faced down foreclosure, and suffered a
leadership collapse. But now a group of neighbors is working against long odds to give this spot new life. The Y
property is half 1860s brownstone mansion and half 1970s athletic center. The mansion with a mansard roof and
gracious porch was once home to prominent local mill families (Garsed and Bromley to name two). It became a
YWCA in the 1940s and was a vital community center for decades. In 1975 the blocky addition was tacked onto
the south side, adding a huge swimming pool, weight room, gymnasium and locker rooms. The New Frankford
Community Y, an independent nonprofit, took over the building in the mid-1990s and operated it as a
membership-based athletic facility. Then in 2009 the Y closed its doors for financial reasons, when its state
funding dried up. The Y swiftly went from community hub to problem property. Vandals wasted no time ripping
apart the interior, stealing copper pipes, radiators, and rooftop HVAC units for scrap. The mahogany banister was
smashed and the pool was tagged. VVagrants occasionally camped out and a family of raccoons colonized the gym.
The roof started to leak. But after five years of hand wringing, there are glimmers of hope now. Kristy Schneider
flipped on the lights (no small victory) and took me through the buildings. The mansion’s roof was recently
repaired, thanks in large part to a grant from state Rep. John Taylor. New HVAC units wait in the basement for
installation, and now workers have started repairing some of the damaged interior. The athletic side needs work —
the roof over the basketball court leaks, a bathroom was ripped apart, and everything needs cleaning and fresh
paint. Local attorney Frank Bennett is leading efforts to repair and repurpose the Y after taking an active interest
in the property as a Northwood Civic Association board member. The Y has been a frequent topic * at civic
association meetings in Northwood and Frankford in recent years. Neighbors expressed concerns about the
building’s safety and its historic significance. More worry came in 2010 when Beneficial Bank initiated
foreclosure proceedings over debt owed, and the property was scheduled for sheriff’s sale. Some called for the
building’s demolition. Redevelopment proposals came and went, including ideas to reuse it as a fancy athletic
club or as part of Sankofa Academy Charter School. Despite nibbles on the building, the more it was vandalized
the less people were interested. The building’s uncertain future drew attention from the Historical Society of
Frankford as well as the Preservation Alliance for Greater Philadelphia, which listed the Y on its 2011
Endangered Properties List. The building, though historic, is not listed on the Philadelphia or National Registers
of Historic Places. “When it became vacant, there were me and three other people riding by that mansion, just
watching it wondering what we could do,” said Debbie Klak of the Historical Society who feared the worst.
“Losing that mansion would be devastating to the community, not just because of its ties to mill history but when

it became the Y what it represented... To lose that you’re losing a great deal of what happened in Frankford.”...

% Hahn, Ashley. Planphilly. Web. <http://planphilly.com/articles/2014/03/13/frankford-y-forging-an-unlikely-path-back-from-the-brink>.
7 [Note: the frequent topic was both preservation & demolition]. Planphilly. Web. <http://planphilly.com/articles?tag=Barry+Howell>.
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Summary Continued & Conclusion

Currently the Garsed-Bromley Mansion building is in the state of vandalism and is in danger of demolition by neglect.

9™ MARCH 2016 — FRONT PORCH WINDOW

CONCLUSION

The Garsed-Bromley Mansion Building, located at 4704 Leiper Street situate within the Northwood Community of
Frankford, the 23" Ward of the City of Philadelphia merits designation by the Philadelphia Historical Commission for
inclusion on the Philadelphia Register of Historic Places under section 14-1004 of the Philadelphia Code & is significant for

the following reasons:

It is built in the Second Empire style of architecture and the only known building of its type in Frankford and in

Northeast Philadelphia at-large, Satisfying (Criterion

(c) Reflects the environment in an era characterized by a distinctive architectural style;

(d) Embodies distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style

The Garsed-Bromley Mansion House is associated with the lives of persons significant in the past during the
Civil War era, specifically John Garsed, and latter: Rachel A. Bault, William Bault, Eliza Davenport, Henry
Davenport, Robert Pilling, James Bromley, And during the 20" Century as the Young Women's Christian

Association of Frankford, a unique Women’s Organization, Satisfying (Criterion

(a) Has significant character, interest or value as part of the development, heritage or cultural characteristics
of the City, Commonwealth or Nation or is associated with the life of a person significant in the past; or

(i) Exemplifies the cultural, political, economic, social or historical heritage of the community.
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8. BIBLIOGRAPHY:
BRIEF OF TITLE
THE GARSED-BROMLEY MANSION
4704 Leiper St., 23" Ward, Philadelphia, PA. 19124
Compiled by Joseph J. Menkevich

Abstract of The New Frankford Community Y and Related Deeds
Year: Grantor: Grantee: Deed Number

20™ April 1866 William Overington John Garsed LRB Vol.174 pg.417

All that Certain Lot or piece of Land Situate on the North Westwardly Side of Leiper street in Frankford aforesaid Beginning
as a corner on the side of the said Leiper Street at a distance of Three hundred and seventy-eight feet four inches North
Eastward from the point where the North Easterly side of Allen Street if extended in a Straight line would intersect with the
North Westerly side of the Said Leiper Street Containing in front on the said Leiper Street two Hundred feet and extending
North Westward between parallel lines at right angles with said Leiper Street in length or depth Six-Hundred feet Bounded
South Westward by ground intended to have been conveyed to Richard Garsed Northwestward by ground now or formerly of
William Overington ... Being part of a larger piece of ground ... as recited in Philadelphia Deed Book AM 35 pages 16—17
(1833), George Leiper (part of the Estate of Thomas Leiper) to William Overington.

02" Sept. 1867 John Garsed John J. Ridgeway JTO Vol.39 pg. 18 [Mortgage]
All That Certain Stone message or tenement Stable and Coach House and lot or piece of Ground Situate on the North
Westerly side of Leiper Street in Frankford aforesaid... Being the Same lot or piece of Ground which the said William
Overington and wife by indenture date the twentieth day of April One thousand eight hundred and sixty-six and recorded in
deed book LRB vol.74 page 417...[In the sum of Forty-Thousand Dollars in Two payments with interest at the rate of six
percent annum)]...

15" Feb. 1873 William R. Leeds, Sheriff Thomas J. Hill District Court Book 79 pg 590
In the case of John Ridgway v. John Garsed, Deed to Thomas J. Hill — I, William R. Leeds Esquire High Sheriff of
Philadelphia County in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania To all whom there presents shall Come Greeting Whereas by a
certain Wart. Of Levari Facias issued out of the District Court for the City and County of Philadelphia tested the Seventeenth
day of September in the year of our Lord One thousand eight hundred and Seventy Two (1872) | the said Sheriff was
Commanded that without any other Writ of the Lands and tenements of John Garsed,
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To wit: All that certain Stone Messuage or Tenements Stable and Coach house and lot or piece of Ground situate on the
Northwesterly side of Leghigh Street (Leiper Street] ... Being the Lot or piece of Ground which William Overington and
wife by Indenture date the Twentieth day of April Anno Domini One thousand Eight hundred and Sixty-Six and recorded in
Deed Book LRB No0.174 page 417 & etc., Granted and Conveyed unto the said John Garsed...
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Year: Grantor: Grantee: Deed Number

27" Nov. 1877 Thomas J. Hill Rachel A. Bault DHL Vo0l.136 pg.156
Thomas J. Hill and Elizabeth his wife convey to Rachel A. Bault subject to a certain Mortgage Debt of $20,000 with interest
recorded upon the same by Indenture of Mortgage given & executed by John Garsed a former owner thereof to John J.
Ridgway dated the Second day of September 1876 Recorded in Philadelphia Mortgage Book JTO 39 page 18 which is herby
excerpted... Being the same premises... out of District Court for the City of Philadelphia was seized taken in execution -
property of John Garsed by Deed Poll under the hand & seal of William R. Leeds Esquire High Sheriff of the County of
Philadelphia -15" February 1873 - Deed poll number 79 page 590 and conveyed to Thomas J. Hill...

18" Jan. 1882 William Bault Eliza Davenport JOD Vol.15 pg. 4

For the sum of $30,000... All That Certain Stone message or tenement Stable and Coach House and lot or piece of Ground
Situate on the North Westwardly Side of Leiper street in Frankford in the Twenty third Ward of the City of Philadelphia
being at a corner on the side of the said Leiper street at a distance of Three hundred and seventy-eight feet-four inches North
Eastward from the point where the North Easterly side of Allen Street if extended in a Straight line would intersect with the
North Westerly side of the Said Leiper Street. Containing in front on the said Leiper Street two Hundred feet and extending
North Westward between parallel lines at right angles with said Leiper Street in length or depth Six-Hundred feet Bounded
South Westward by ground intended to have been conveyed to Richard Garsed Northwestward by ground now or formerly of
William Overington ... Being the same premises which Thomas J Hill & wife by a certain Indenture dated 27" of November
1877 - recorded in Deed Book DHL No0.136 page 156 granted to Rachael A. Bault - (wife of the above named William Bault)
[subject to a mortgage debt of $20,000 which since has been paid off and Satisfied] and the said Rachael A. Bault being so
seized of the said premises departed this life on or about November 20, 1881 ... having published her last will and testament
in writing 2™ March 1876 - (leaving all property to her husband William Bault).

LAST WILL & TESTAMENT OF ELIZA DAVENPORT
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08 Will 1018 of 1887. Microfilm. Accessed: Room 185 Philadelphia City Hall. 20 January 2016.
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Year: Grantor: Grantee: Deed Number

27" Feb. 1888 Henry Davenport * Charles M. Seltzer GGP Vo0l.434 pg.484
Henry Davenport, formerly of the City of Philadelphia, State of Pennsylvania, now residing at Stamford Lodge Winslow on
the County Cheshire England and Hannah Elizabeth his wife on one part and Charles M. Seltzer of the City of Philadelphia,
Physician on the other part for the sum of $20,000. ... Being the Same premises which William Bault by a certain indenture
dated January 18, 1882 recorded in Philadelphia Deed Book JOD 15 page 4 conveyed to Eliza Davenport (the wife of the
above named Henry Davenport therefore of Brownstone Mansion Leiper and Arrott Street Philadelphia Frankford America
but thereof Stamford Lodge Winslow on the County Cheshire England) being seized of this life on or about the Eight day of
September 1885 AD, having first made & published her last will and testament... on the (blank) day of August 1885 ... to
her husband ... the above mentioned Mansion hereditaments and premises with the land and appurtenance thereto belonging
or occupied therewith called Brown stone Mansion...

3" Dec. 1888 William L eicester Henry Davenport GGP Vol.458 pg.311
William Leicester of 12 Smith Street Little Park Forge Middleton in the County of Lancaster England of the first part and
Henry Davenport late of Philadelphia in the State of Pennsylvania U.S.A. and now residing at Stamford Lodge Winslow on
the County Cheshire England... All that Certain Stone Messuage or Tenement stable and Coach House and piece of ground
situate on the North Westwardly side of Leiper Street in Frankford, in the Twenty third ward ...

5" Dec. 1888 Henry Davenport Charles M. Seltzer " GGP Vol.455 pg.354
Henry Davenport, formerly of the City of Philadelphia, State of Pennsylvania, now residing at Stamford Lodge Winslow on
the County Cheshire England and Hannah Elizabeth his wife on one part and Charles M. Seltzer of the said City of
Philadelphia Physician of the Second part ... for the sum of Twenty Thousand dollars heretofore paid as of the sum of One
Dollar... All that Certain Stone Messuage or Tenement stable and Coach House... on Leiper Street in Frankford...

HENRY DAVENPORT AND WILLIAM LEISTER KISSED OVER HER GRAVE "

JANUARY 22, 1889

THEY KISsED OVER THE GRAVE, came tich, and put all his property in

Honry Davenport and William Leister ‘D¢ Woman’sname. The couple returned
Seitle n Dispute, to England recently,and the woman died.

William Leister and Henry Davenport l)“"""'l"'.” ”i'!d e l"‘"”'l h“: ll".'i""r
) stepped In and, as the legal heir o
g b} T4 ! ¥ L » :

have shaken hands over the grave of ). wife, sought to secure possession of
the woman on whose account they quar-  jt and Davenport's game was blocked.
reled, and a tangled lawsuit which Leister and Davenport have settled
3 » l. ,‘ » . . i » . T
involved property in Frankford, has ‘tDeir troubles, and Leister signed a deed
R At A ahaetaibi,d relinquishing his righs to a life interest
l:(”"l’-.l witl l‘“"“".‘” teate ’“’l'“ in his wife's estate, This deed reached
-ngiand wilh Leister's wile, and the  ppjladelphia a few days ago.—Phila-
couple resided in Frankford, Twenty- delvhia Record. 924 inst

third ward, for years. Davenport b - ‘ —

918 Jan. 1885. The Times. Philadelphia. Pg. 2. Lawsuit against Henry Davenport, his mill at York & Mascher Sts. Web.

<https://www.newspapers.com/image/53054043/>.
70 29th Oct. 1888, The New York Times. Page 1. Col. 2. A Singular L egal Proceeding. Dr. Charles M. Seltzer vs. Henry Davenport. Web.

<https://www.newspapers.com/image/20350513/>.
71 220d Jan, 1889, Harrisburg Daily Independent. Pg. 1, Col. 3. Web. <https://www.newspapers.com/image/83034063/>.
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Year: Grantor: Grantee: Deed Number
16™ Jan. 1889 Charles M. Seltzer William Bault & Robert Pilling GGP Vol.430 pg.516
All that Certain Stone Messuage or Tenement stable and Coach House and piece of ground situate on the North Westwardly
side of Leiper Street in Frankford in the Twenty Third Ward of the City of Philadelphia ... Being the same premises, which
Henry Davenport & Hannah Elizabeth his wife intended to convey to Charles M. Seltzer on 27" February 1888, and which
said Henry Davenport & wife by Quite Claim Deed dated December 5" 1888, granted & conveyed to Charles M. Seltzer...

28" Jan. 1892 Robert Pilling William Bault TG Vol.128 pg.352
Robert Pilling & Mary his wife on one part and William Bault, dyer & bleacher on the other part - for the sum of One Dollar
& other valuable considerations... All that one full equal and undivided half part (the whole into two equal parts to be
divided) and all the estate right title and interest of the said Robert Pilling and Mary his wife of in and to All that Certain
Stone messuage or Tenement Stable... Situate on the North Westwardly Side of Leiper Street and North Eastwardly Side of
Arrott Street as laid out Fifty feet wide on the Plan of the City of Philadelphia in Frankford in the Twenty Third ward ...
Containing in front on the said Leiper Street One Hundred and Seventy five feet ... Being part of a larger tract of ground and
premises which Charles M. Seltzer & wife by Indenture dated January 16, 1889 in Philadelphia Deed Book G.G.P. no. 430
page 516 granted and conveyed unto the said William Bault & Robert Pilling as Tenants in common. ..

19" Oct. 1895 William Bault James Bromiley JJC Vol.141 pg.387
For the sum of $17,000... Being part of a larger Tract that Charles M. Seltzer on the 16" January 1889 granted to William
Bault & Robert Pilling [deed book: GGP-430 p 516], and Robert Pilling on January 28, 1892 [see Deed Book TG-128 p 352]
to William Bault.

24" June 1941 Irene B. Dorey Young Woman's Christian Association DWH Vol.1288 pg. 347
Being the same premises which William Bault & Linda M., his wife - by indenture 19" October 1895 granted & transferred
to James Bromiley, recorded in Deed Book JJC-141 p 387, Under Restrictions set forth in Philadelphia Deed Book J.J.C.
No.141 page 387. [Note: James Bromley died on February 27, 1934 leaving a Last Will, Recorded in Philadelphia Will Book
595 page 121. Widow Bault-Emery Bromiley - took a share- Recorded in Deed Book JMH-3736 p 600, also filed in Orphans'
Court Case No. 1318 of 1936 on May 29, 1936. Notice of Election - Estate of James Bromiley. See: JIMH Vol.3736 pg.600].

3" March 1993 Y.W.C.A. Y.W.C.A. VCS Vol. 290 pg. 460
The Young Woman’s Christian Association of Philadelphia by Deed of Confirmation, conveyance unto The Young Woman’s
Christian Association of Philadelphia, in fee.

3" July 1996 Y.W.CA The New Frankford Community Y D0055-471
ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground situate in the 23" Ward of the City of Philadelphia described as follows, to wit:

BEGINNING at a point formed by the intersection of the Northwesterly side of Leiper Street (forty feet wide) and the
Northeasterly side of Arrott Street (sixty feet wide).

CONTAINING in front or breadth Northeastwardly along said Leiper Street one hundred twenty-five feet and extending of
that width in length or depth Northwestwardly between parallel lines at right angles to the said Leiper Street two hundred
sixty-five feet. The Southwesterly line passing along the said Northeasterly side of Arrott Street.

BEING Addressed as 4704 Leiper Street. BEING part of the same premises which Irene Bromiley Dorey also known as Irene
Dorey, Executor and Trustee under the Will of James Bromiley, deceased and Emma Emery Bromiley, widow by Deed dated
6/15/1941 and recorded 6/13/1941 in Philadelphia County, in Deed Book DWH 1288 page 347 and conveyed unto The
Young Woman’s Christian Association of Philadelphia (A Pa. Corp.), its successors and assigns, in fee.

AND being the same premises which The Young Woman’s Christian Association of Philadelphia by Deed of Confirmation
dated 3/5/1993 and recorded 4/29/1993 in Philadelphia County in Deed Book VCS 290 page 460 conveyed unto The Young
Woman’s Christian Association of Philadelphia, in fee. UNDER AND SUBJECT to restrictions of record.

WARD #: 23" St. CODE/HOUSE NO.: 50080 - 04700. CITY REGISTRY: 90 N 22 — 99.

72 Web. 13% April 2016. <http:
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